CITY OF FRANKLIN, TENNESSEE
PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT

(City of Franklin Contract No. 2017-0088)

THIS PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT?”) is by and between the City of
Franklin, Tennessee (“CITY™”), and Pinnacle Bank of Nashville, Tennessee (“VENDOR”), who
mutually agree as follows:

1. CITY issued (a) on February 3, 2017 Purchasing Office Solicitation No. 2017-011, a
request for proposals for comprehensive banking services, including general banking,
lockbox processing, and purchasing cards, (b) on February 23, 2017 Addendum No. 1 to
Purchasing Office Solicitation No. 2017-011, and (c) on March 1, 2017 Addendum No. 2
to Purchasing Office Solicitation No. 2017-011 (collectively, “SOLICITATION”).

2. Inresponse to CITY’s SOLICITATION, VENDOR submitted a proposal dated March 3,
2017 (“*SUBMITTAL?”), a copy of excerpts from which is attached hereto as Attachment
No. 1 and hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

3. VENDOR included in SUBMITTAL CITY’s Standard Procurement Terms and Conditions
with VENDOR’s contact information inserted (“CITY’S TERMS”), a copy of which is
attached hereto as Attachment No. 2 and hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth herein.

4. VENDOR included in SUBMITTAL CITY’s Indemnification Agreement, executed for
VENDOR (“INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT?”), a copy of which is attached hereto
as Attachment No. 3 and hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

5. CITY awarded on April 25, 2017 to VENDOR the purchase of general banking, lockbox
processing, and purchasing card services pursuant to SOLICITATION and SUBMITTAL.

6. The term of award shall commence effective July 1, 2017 and shall expire one (1) year
from the effective date. At any time after commencement but before or as soon as
practicable after the expiration of this term of award, CITY and VENDOR may, by mutual
consent, exercise not more than four (4) options to extend the term of award, each time for
up to one (1) additional year, for a maximum possible term of award of five (5) years total,
provided: (a) that both parties consent to such an extension at that time; (b) that the
decision to exercise such an extension is memorialized in writing and is executed by
authorized representatives of each party (in the case of CITY, either CITY’s City
Administrator or CITY’s Purchasing Manager, after consultation with the Assistant City
Administrator for Finance and Administration / Chief Financial Officer, the Comptroller
and the Assistant City Recorder for Revenue Management of CITY, is so authorized); (c)
that the same terms and conditions that apply to the original term of award shall also apply
to such an extension, including, to the extent practicable as mutually determined a
minimum of three (3) months in advance of the scheduled expiration of the term of award,
pricing; and (d) that if VENDOR chooses not to consent to an extension to the term of
award, then it shall notify CITY of that decision a minimum of six (6) months in advance
of the scheduled expiration of the term of award. Note that CITY and VENDOR each
specifically retain the non-exclusive right, with or without cause, not to extend the term of
award.

Page 1 of 2



CITY OF FRANKLIN, TENNESSEE
PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT

(City of Frankdin Contract No. 2017-0088)

7. In the event of a conflict between the following documents, the order of precedence shall
be as follows: (a) this AGREEMENT; (b) CITY’S TERMS; (c) INDEMNIFICATION
AGREEMENT; (d) SOLICITATION; and (e) SUBMITTAL.

EXECUTED THIS [ C) DAY OF J ] !ﬁf A z 20!_]

For VENDOR: For OITY:

it CMae @ 8 bl
‘(signarurc of VEN Oﬂ‘s authorized rntativc) (signature of CITY’s authorized representative)

TITLE; Q/é TITLE: City Administrator

Approved as to Form:

w’“\\/m\% [f'»m

Attorney tor City of Franklin
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Attachment No. 1

Excerpts from SUBMITTAL



HISTORIC
FRANKLIN
TENNESSEE






Proposer’s name, street address, and mailing address:

Pinnacle Bank

150 3rd Avenue South

Nashville, TN 37201

Proposer’s contact pexrson’s name (printed), title, telephone
number and e-mail address:

Vickie Manning

Senior Vice President

615-744-3793

vickie.manning@pipf.com

Does the proposer take any exceptions to the City’s
procurement solicitation?

[ ] Yes, see enclosed.

£ No, proposer takes no exceptions.

Are exceptions, if any, to the City’s procurement solicitation
listed, described, compared to the City’s intention as
expressed and implied by the City’s solicitation
documents, and submitted?

[ ] Yes, see enclosed.

-~ No, proposer takes no exceptions.

Are the City’s preferred payment terms (net 30 days from date of
delivery or date of invoice, whichever is later) acceptable to pl‘OpOSCi‘?

E Yes.

[_] No, proposer requests the following
payment terms:

Last date (no sooner than May 31, 2017) that proposal and
associated pricing is valid and may be accepted by the

City:

May 31,2017

Method of payment — The City’s default method of payment is by
electronic means, either by direct deposit (i.e., “ACH” or “Electronic
Funds Transfer”), or by Visa credit card, rather than by conventional
check. Which electronic payment method would the proposer prefer?

o ACH or Electronic Funds Transfer.
[ ] Visa credit card.




Proposer’s name:

Pinnacle Bank

Are the following components included with this Proposal
Submittal Form in the submittal?

o Detailed proposer-supplied description of proposed product(s) and/or
service(s);

o Identification, listing and description of any exceptions to the procurement
solicitation;

o Contact information for required references (per the Instructions for
Proposers);

City of Franklin Standavd Procurermeni Terms and Conditions, with the
proposer’s contact information inserted;

o Proposer’s proposed agreement or contract, if any, the terms and conditions of
which shall be not inconsistent with the City’s Standard Procurement Terms
and Conditions;

o City of Franklin Affidavit of Non-Collusion, executed in full;
o City of Franklin Affidavit of Title VI Compliance, executed in full; and

o A complete digital copy of submitted proposal documents per the Instructions
for Proposers.

B Yes, see enclosed.

|| No, proposer chooses not to include
the documents indicated.

Acknowledge any and all issued addenda to this solicitation:
(Prior to submitting its proposal, it is the responsibility of each potential proposer
to determine whether any addenda to this procurement solicitation have in fact
been issued by the City.)

(@] Addendum No. 1

~ Addenda Nos. 2

[ ] No addenda.

Subscription and affirmation of proposer’s authorized

l‘epresentative: By submission of this proposal, each proposer and each
person signing on behalf of any proposer certifies, and in the case of a joint
proposal each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of
perjury, that to the best of its knowledge and belief that each proposer is not on the
list created pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated § 12-12-106.

Signature of proposer’s authorized representative: Ihave
obtained and read, and do understand and consent, to all instructions, terms and
conditions, including those imposed by reference, which apply to this procurement
solicitation and compliance with which is required as a condition precedent to
consideration of the proposal submitted herewith.

o /

(signature)

\ic o (}N\

(signature)

Title of proposer’s authorized representative:

Senior Vice President

N

Date of signatures:

35207




BANK INFORMATION Please Indicate
Bank Association or financial institution organized and
1 operating under the laws of the State of Tennessee or the Yes B No []
United States of America.
. Deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance N
2 Corporation (FDIC). vos M No[]
For deposits in excess of FDIC insurance, deposits
would be secured by of the US or State of Tennessee .
B
3 having a market value of at least 105%, provided further Yes No[]
the securities are held by a third party.
Principal Office or Full Service Branch Located Within -
4 Williamson County, Tennessee. Yes No[]
5 Asset Base of $100 million or more. Yes W No []
6 In the State’s Collateral Pool? Yes @ No []
If not in State’s Collateral Pool, do you have a Deposit
Collateral Agreement that complies with the Financial .
7 Institutions Reform, Recovery, & Enforcement Act of Yes [] No
1989 (FIRREA).
ADDITIONAL BANK INFORMATION Please fill in
8 Current CRA Rating Outstanding
9 Tier 1 Capital Ratio 9.3%
10 % of Loan Loss Reserves to Total Loans 0.70%
11 Tangible Common Equity to Tangible Assets (TCE/TA) | 8.8%
12 Bank Stress Test Not Public Information
13 Moody’s Rating Not Applicable
14 Most recent audit financial statements and the most Please attach to response.

recent 10-Q statement,




SERVICES INFORMATION Please Indicate

1 ACH Services Yes W No [ ]
2 Remote Deposit Services Yes M No []
3 Cash Services Yes [ No []
4 7 éou1‘iel' Servicesﬁi o R B Ye;E ] ‘No ]
5 Depository Services Yes W No []
6 ﬁgen ‘i[Egerest earnings credited on the last day of the Yes No[]
7 Bisbursement Services (including positive pay) Yes !_ No []
8 Lockbox Services Yes B No []
9 City that Lockbox P.O. Box is Addressed Nashville

10 Location of Lockbox Processing Facility Nashville

11 Online Banking Services ‘ Yes W l No []
12 Wire Services Yes H I No []




if the average collected balance is
approximately ...

... then the proposed rate(s) would be ...

$5,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps
$10,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps
$15,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps
$20,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps
$25,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps
$30,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps
$35,000,000 Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Raie plus 33 bps

$40,000,000

Floor of 1.00% or Fed Funds Effective Rate plus 33 bps







Service

ACH Services

ACH Maintenance
ACH Batches Processed
ACH Debits Originated
ACH Credits Originated

ACH Returns

ACH Notification of Change

ACH Detail Report

Remote Deposit Services

Remote Deposit-Maintenance
Remote Deposit-Deposits Made

Remote Deposit-Items Deposited

Cash Services
Cash Deposited per $1,000

Courier Services

Courier Service per Trip

Depository Services
Account Maintenance
ACH Debits Received
ACH Credits Received
Checks Paid

Deposits Posted

Checks Deposited - OnUs
Checks Deposited - Other
Return Deposited Itemns
Stop Payments

Volume

14
6,610

oYl
NVIVL

72
3.074

61

21

497
116
250
49
559
6,516

wom KX

b3

>

e 5

& B0 A b2

“ e e e e e o

¥ o

Unit Price

15.00
1.50
0.05
0.05
3.00
1.50
15.00

25.00
0.10
0.04

1.50

8.00

10.00
0.06
0.06
0.09
0.20
0.05
0.05
5.00
19.00

£ B2 & &

L R ]

& L 2 L L L e s e

Service Charge

15.00
21.00
330.50
118.20
42.00
1.50
30.00

25.00
7.20
122.96

91.50

168.00

80.00
29.82
6.96
22.50
9.80
27.95
325.80
35.00
19.00




Lockbox Services

Lockbox Maintenance 1
Lockbox Ttems Deposited 6,880
Lockbox Reject Items 37
Lockbox Web Access Maintenance 1
Lockbox Web Image Item 14,176
Lockbox Data Entry per Field 1,079
Lockbox Deposits Posted 21
Electronic Receivables Maint 1
Electronic Receivables per Item 6,896

Other Fees Not Shown Above
ACH Same Day Credits Originated

ACH Prenote Transactions

ACH Return Unauthorized
OD/NSF ltem

Domestic Wire Outgoing - Manual

®ooX o® %

b3

&3 Y R B B & B8 e

“2

& B e o

50.00
0.11
0.25
25.00
0.02
0.05
0.15
25.00
0.05

0.50
0.05
3.00
19.00
12.00

& B T e

E=5]

o2 2 BT B 0 e

L= A ]

" 2 B e O

Service Charge

70.00
1.50

14.76
30.00

45.00

50.00
756.80
9.25
25.00
283.52
53.95
3.15
25.00
344.80




PURCHASING CARD INFORMATION Please Indicate
Which national brand (MasterCard, Visa, etc.) is used? MasterCard

[s there automated approval and reconciliation software? Yes O No []
Can l’he. car.ds be talllored with the City logo aid sales tax Ves No[]
exemption information?

Can there b? designated users with authority to manage Ves No[]
the purchasing cards online?

Can there be customized usage set up on the cards? Yes M No []
[s training and customer support provided? Yes W No [ ]
Is there a rebate to the City based on expenditures? Yes B No []
If $7.32 million in 2016 was a representative annual 1.25%

spend for the City, what would be the rebate percent(s)?

Rebate chart used to answer 8 above. Please attach to response.

























INTEREST AVERAGE AVERAGE LOW ACCOUNT HIGH ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BEARING POSITIVE PAY |ACCOUNTBALANCE|BALANCE (Jan-Dec | BALANCE {Jan-Dec
FILESPER MIONTH| (Jan-Dec 2016) 2016) 2016)
City's pri operatin
General Operating s primary Operating | -y $36,539,490 $34,658,995 $39,317,822
bank account.
Zero Balance. Linked to
Payroll ) No 2to4 $0 S0 S0
General Operating.
Zero Balance. Linked to
Accounts Payable ) No 6to8 S0 S0 S0
General Operating.
Zero Balance. Linked to
Accounts Receivable ) No - S0 S0 $0
General Operating.
Funds received from
Transit System Y ) Yes - 51,039,264 $838,781 $1,267,774
transit fares and grants.
Funds held in trust as
Evidence Trust evidence pending case No - $25,374 $24,496 $31,027
resolution.
Funds held in trust
Performance Bonds pending developer No - $3,238,938 $2,878,250 $3,418,790
performance.
Funds received by Cit
Hnes s OOy Y Yes $402,481 $354,856 $415,615

from confiscations.



















Factors

Percent

Ability of financial institution to provide required banking

services as requested on Response Forms 1, 2, and 5. V0%
Interest Earnings as requested on Response Form No. 3. 25%
Fees as requested on Response Form No. 4. 25%
Total 100%
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Analysts



24
25
42
54
56
58
60
63
75
76
85
89
93
96
97

Pinnacle Financial Partners
Renasant

BB&T

Fifth Third Bancorp
BancorpSouth

U.S. Bancorp

United Community Banks
Wells Fargo & Company
Trustmark

IBERIABANK

Regions Financial
Synovus Financial
SunTrust Banks

First Horizon National

Bank of America

Total
assets

(bil)

$11
59
$223
$143
$15
$454
$10
$1,942
513
$21
$125
S30
$205
$28
$2,199

Return on

avg. total

common
equity

15.4%
15.8%
15.3%
14.6%
8.7%
19.3%
10.7%
16.2%
10.1%
11.2%
10.6%
8.4%
11.6%
10.9%
9.9%

NPAs/total
assets

0.4%
0.8%
0.8%
1.4%
0.6%
1.0%
0.9%
1.3%
0.9%
1.8%
1.7%
1.2%
1.7%
1.5%
0.9%

Tier 1
ratio

7.6%
10.2%
10.1%
10.2%
12.1%

9.5%
11.0%
10.9%
12.4%
10.1%
11.2%
10.0%

9.8%

9.8%
11.0%

Efficiency
ratio

52%
65%
61%
57%
74%
55%
62%
58%
69%
61%
64%
65%
63%
73%
67%

Latest
12-mos
revenue
growth

46%
37%
12%
12%
3%
4%
29%
2%
0%
15%
7%
6%
5%
9%
-1%
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INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT
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